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EAST HAVEN OLD CEMETERY BOARD
HYBRID SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 31, 2023

The East Haven Old Cemetery Board held a hybrid special meeting at 7:00 PM on Thursday,
August 31, 2023 virtually and in person at the East Haven Senior Center, 91 Taylor Avenue, East
Haven, CT 06512, and transacted the following:

Chairperson Robert Sand calied the meeting to order at 7:04 pm.
Rell Call was taken and a quorum was present.

Present: Commissioners Arlene Hackbarth, Barbara Buonome, and Chairperson Robert Sand
present in person. Vice-Chairperson Marcia Federico and Commissioners Judy Ruggiero, Melanie
Johnson, James Longo present virtually.

Approval of Minutes:

Chairperson Sand asked if all in attendance had received and read the minutes from the
July 27, 2023 regular meeting and all had. Chairperson Sand asked if there were any corrections,
omissions or questions.

Commissioner Ruggiero stated she had a correction concerning the audit. The minutes state
‘yearly when in fact the audit is performed bi-yearly.

Chairperson Sand asked if there were any other corrections.

Hearing none, Chairperson Sand asked for a motion to accept the July 27, 2023 regular meeting
minutes with the one correction.

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to accept the July 27, 2023 regular meeting minutes with the
one correction. Vice-Chairperson Federico seconded the motion to accept the July 27, 2023 regular
meeting minutes with the one correction.
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All in favor, none opposed, no abstentions, motion carried. Minutes from July 27, 2023 regular
meeting were accepted with the one correction.

Correspondence: None

Treasurer’s Report:

Commissioner Ruggiero stated on August 30, 2023 she paid Jovani Precious Cuts $1,080.00 for
lawn care that occurred on July 26, 2023 and August 16, 2023 respectively. Commissioner
Ruggiero received the Town Stipend of $6,700.00 for fiscal year 2023-2024 and deposited it into

account. Commissioner Ruggiero reimbursed herself the cost of $74.45 for floral arrangement sent
to Vice-Chairperson Federico. Balance in account as of August 31, 2023 was $10, 921.77.

Chairperson Sand asked if there were any questions, concerns, corrections with the treasurer’s
report as read.
Hearing none, Chairperson Sand asked for a motion to accept treasurer’s report as read.

Commissioner Hackbarth made a motion to accept treasurer’s report as read. Commissioner
Buonome seconded the motion to accept treasurer’s report as read.

All in favor, none opposed, no abstentions, motion carried. Treasurer’s Report accepted as read.

Ongoing Project Reports:
Landscaping:

Chairperson Sand stated grass was looking great, and he scheduled another grassing cutting for
September 6, 2023, but the trees were not removed by public services as of yet.

Bamboo:
Chairperson Sand reported no shoots have appeared in the old cemetery.
Retention Wall:

No Report. Commissioner Johnson stated the Board needed to remind Mayor Carfora about
Preservation Connecticut, an organization that provides grants for historical cemeteries.



Main Gate Entrance Pavers and Shrubbery Along Curbing:
No Report
Old Cemetery Flyer:

Chatrperson Sand had two versions of the flyer made (see attached) and sent to each Commissioner
for inspection. One flyer had larger font size than other, both on same style paper and coloration.

Chairperson Sand asked for input from the Commissioners. Commissioner Hackbarth stated the
quote on top of first page should be centered better with Commissioner Johnson asking if the quote
could be boxed in as well. Commissioner Buonome made notes for her daughter, Cheryl Panzo,
who designed the flyer. Discussion concerning type of paper took place, with the consensus being
the paper should be matte with a linen type texture. Chairperson Sand will pick up samples for
paper for the Board’s approval.

A discussion took place as to which version was more popular: Version 1 with the smaller font or
Version 2 with the larger font. By a 4 to 3 margin, Version 1 was the most popular.

Further discussion will take place at next meeting.

Old Business:
Commissioner Ruggiero stated the Audit would begin with the date of October 17, 2021.

Chairperson Sand stated he would like Commissioner Ruggiero to contact Benny and ask

Benny and his father Bedri to meet Chairperson Sand at the Old Cemetery to walk through and give
an estimate of how many headstones need to be repaired and the cost. Chairperson Sand stated
since the Old Cemetery 1s a Town owned piece of property, the Town should help with costs to
maintain the headstones. Chairperson Sand would like to submit a Capital Improvement Project
Report during the fiscal year 2024-2025 budget process seeking funds to repair all headstones.

New Business:

Commissioner Ruggiero stated her granddaughter would be in town from September 28, 2023 to
October 2, 2023 and asked Commissioner Ruggiero to ask the Board for permission to perform a
stone rubbing for her art class. Commissioner Ruggiero’s granddaughter stated she would use
charcoal or crayon and butcher paper, she would also take before and after pictures of the
headstones to chronicle that the headstones were not damaged during the process.



None of the Commissioners had any issues, permission was granted.

Chairperson Sand asked if there was any other New Business.
Hearing none, Chairperson Sand asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting.

Commissioner Buonome made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Hackbarth
seconded the motion to adjourn the meeting.

All in favor, none opposed, no abstentions, motion carried. Meeting was adjourned at 7:46 pm.

Respectfully submitted,
Stacy Gravino, Clerk
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Prior to the arrlval of European settlers
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now emstrng on the east side of the ground ;
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History of East Haven by Sara Hughes
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. STEPINTO A STORY
© WAS IT FACT OR FICTION? -

The Burying Ground was a free burlal place, and after .
. —

another fifty-two years; it was evident that "what was

For several years after the settiement of East Haven,
the inhabitants were compelled to carry their dead to
New Haven and inter them in-the ancrent burying
ground on what is now called the upper Green behind
the Center Church. It was an arduous trip, especrally
durrng poor weather.

Therefore, on June 13, 1707, itwas "agreed to
sequester a piece of land for a burying place of the
south side of the pond on the Forthill so called, as
much as may be spared from highways and watering
cattle:” Thus began The Old Cemetery.in East Haven, -
Connecticut, first called the "Burying Ground " .
The oldest stone in the Burying Ground found bears .
_1712. 1tisn'tlikely that there are any.earlier dates.
Very little attention was glven to the burying ground -
for many years until people began to let their cattle
feed in it. '

In 1777, a voté was taken that a committee of Jacob
Bradley, Samuel Shepherd, and Joseph Hemingway -
take caré of it andthat no horses or cattie were to
graze on the land. Only geese sheep, and calves were
allowed to feed there.

A hearse house onthe northwest corner of the Burying .

Ground housed a'hearse used for'funerals. However,
the undertaker for East. Haven forseverat years was
from North Haven, and he always came a few hours
before.the funeral to save travel with his hearse
bearing the casket. This custom allowed the old town
hearse to disappear and the hearse-house to fall to
decay and be swept away wrth other refuse

everybody's business was nobody's.” it was
deplorable, overrun with sumac and other bushes,
briars, and rank weeds. The fences were old and
broken, and there'were none at'all in places, and not
infrequently, cattle were seen within its precincts.

'_'Everyone deplored the éituatio'n but no one took the’
“initlative to remedy the state of affairs. )
. In-1849, a society was formed by some young ladies,
_and it was decided that the Burying Ground was the

moet needy object in East Haven. Jeremiah B. )
Davidson handed out a new crisp five dollar bill to

_start them off. The membership fee was 25 cents; the

fine for lnexcusable absence:from meetings was 10

., cents. This society of young tac,”es successfull/
. canvassed the town for money-and hired Asahel

Bradley to clean up the grounds and build fences.

- The following year Reverend D. W: Havens of the
o Congregattona[ Church, not to be outdone by the |
“women, organized the men to build a gateway to

adorn the Burying Ground and complete the fence. -
Formally known as The Burying Ground, in 1868, the

'Burying'Ground took on the name of "Old Cemetery.”
" On October 5, 1868, it was voted that $50 be

approprlated from the town treasury to remove brush

) etc

In most cemeteries there are many
quaint and striking epitaphs on
stones. One which has attracted
much attention, is that of Mr.
Edmund Bradley with its seven
outlined faces representing three
pairs of twins and the eldest born:

"SEE DEATH REMOVES THE ELDEST SON JUST AS THE
FAMILY'S BEGUN

AND THREE PAIR OF TWINS IN A SHORT SPACE TO
QUICKEN THEM IN THE CHRISTIAN RACE."

CHILDREN OF EDMUND AND LYD!A BRADLEY
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